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AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of JK Tyre &
Industries Limited, as at 31st March 2012, the Statement of
Profit and Loss Account and also the Cash Flow Statement of
the company for the year ended on that date annexed thereto.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s Management.  Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India.  Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by Management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation.  We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor ’s Report) Order,
2003 (as amended) (The Order) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 227 (4A) of the
Companies Act, 1956 (The Act), and on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the company as we
considered appropriate and according to the information
and explanations given to us during the course of audit,
we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on the matters
specified in the paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

2. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in
Paragraph 1 above, we report that:

(a) We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as
appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are
in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report
comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in
Section 211 (3C) of the Companies Act, 1956;

(e) As per the information and explanations given to us,
none of the directors of the Company is disqualified
from being appointed as a director under clause (g)
of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the Companies
Act, 1956.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the said accounts read together
with Significant Accounting Policies and Notes thereon, give
the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:

i) In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of
the Company as at 31st March, 2012;

ii) In the case of Statement of Profit & Loss Account, of
the Profit for the year ended on that date; and

iii) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

N.K. LODHA
Partner

Firm Registration No. 301051E

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 Membership No. 85155

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Referred to in paragraph (1) of our Report of even date of JK
TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year ended 31st March, 2012

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the
Management according to the programme of
periodical verification in phased manner which in our
opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its fixed assets. The
discrepancies noticed on such physical verification
were not material.

(c) As per the records and information and explanations
given to us, fixed assets disposed off during the year
were not substantial.

2. (a) The Inventory of the Company (except stock lying with
third parties and in transit, for which confirmations have
been received / materials received) has been verified
by the Management at reasonable intervals.

(b) The procedures of physical verification of inventory
followed by the Management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
nature of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of
inventory. The discrepancies noticed on such physical
verification of inventory as compared to book records
were not material.

3. The Company has neither granted nor taken any loan,
secured or unsecured to and from companies, firms or
other parties as covered in the register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 4 (iii) (b) to (d), (f) & (g) of the Order
are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there is adequate internal control
system commensurate with the size of the Company and
the nature of its business for the purchase of inventory and
fixed assets and for the sale of goods and services. Based
on the audit procedure performed and on the basis of
information and explanations provided by the
Management, during the course of our audit we have not
observed any continuing failure to correct major
weaknesses in internal control system.

5. According to the information and explanations provided
by the Management and based upon audit procedures
performed, we are of the opinion that the particulars of
contracts or arrangements referred to in section 301 of
the Act have been entered in the register required to be
maintained under that section and the transactions made
in pursuance of such contracts or arrangements
(exceeding the value of five lacs rupees in respect of each
party during the financial year) have been made at prices
which are generally reasonable having regard to the
prevailing market prices at the relevant time.
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6. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Sections 58A and 58AA or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with
regard to deposits accepted from the public. According
to the information and explanations given to us, no order
has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court
or any other Tribunal in this regard.

7. In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size of the Company and nature
of its business.

8. We have broadly reviewed the books of account
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made
by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
records under Section 209(1) (d) of the Act in respect of
the Company’s products to which the said rules are made
applicable and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of
the said records with a view to determine whether they
are accurate or complete.

9. (a) According to the records of the Company, the
Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Investor
Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income tax, Sales tax, Wealth tax, Service
tax, Custom duty, Excise duty, Cess and other material
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities to the
extent applicable and there are no undisputed
statutory dues payable for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable as at
31st March, 2012.

(b) According to the records and information &
explanations given to us, there are no dues in respect
of Income tax, Wealth tax and Cess that have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute and the dues in respect of, Sales tax,
Excise duty, Custom duty and Service tax that have
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities
on account of dispute and the forum where the
dispute is pending are given below:

Name of the Nature of Amount Forum where dispute
Statute the dues (` in Lacs)  is pending

Sales Tax Act Sales Tax 283.53 Deputy Commissioner /
Deputy Commissioner
(Appeals)

0.51 Additional Commissioner

0.69 Tribunal

0.96 Joint Commissioner

1.80 High Court

Central Excise Excise Duty 56.53 Commissioner (Appeals)

Act 99.81 Additional Commissioner

182.47 CESTAT

19.68 Supreme Court

Custom Act Custom Duty 241.15 Supreme Court

Finance Act Service Tax 28.71 Commissioner (Appeals)

75.62 Deputy Commissioner

32.51 CESTAT

The Rajasthan Entry Tax 49.00 High Court
Tax on Entry of
Goods into Local
Area Act, 1999

Read with note no. 37.

10. The Company does not have accumulated losses at the
end of the financial year and has not incurred cash losses
in the current financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

11. In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and
according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
to financial institutions or banks or debenture holders.

12. According to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not granted any loans and advances
on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities.

13. The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit
fund / society, therefore, the provisions of clause 4 (xiii) of
the said Order are not applicable to the Company.

14. In our opinion, the Company is not dealing in or trading in
shares, securities, debentures and other investments.

15. According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company does not have any guarantee
outstanding for loans taken by others from bank and
financial institutions.

16. In our opinion, on the basis of information and explanations
given to us, the term loans were applied for the purposes
for which the loans were obtained.

17. On the basis of information and explanations given to us
and on an overall examination of the financial statements
of the Company, no funds raised on short-term basis have
been used for long-term investment.

18. According to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
of shares during the year to any parties or companies
covered in the Register maintained under section 301 of
the Companies Act 1956.

19. On the basis of records made available to us and
according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has created securities for debentures as
stated in item no. 1 of Note 4. The Company has no
outstanding debentures as at the year end.

20. The company has not raised any money by way of public
issue during the year.

21. Based on the audit procedure performed and on the basis
of information and explanations provided by the
Management, no fraud on or by the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

For LODHA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

N.K. LODHA

Partner

Firm Registration No. 301051E

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 Membership No. 85155
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JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31st MARCH 2012 ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note No. 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital 2 41.06 41.06
Reserves and Surplus 3 629.54 673.66

670.60 714.72
Non-current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 4 977.59 414.00
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 147.56 144.86
Other Long-term liabilities 6 344.02 302.23
Long-term provisions 7 9.43 5.65

1478.60 866.74
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 700.45 818.73
Trade payables 1030.17 738.97
Other current liabilities 9 352.79 281.64
Short-term provisions 10 95.84 98.50

2179.25 1937.84
TOTAL 4328.45 3519.30

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
- Tangible assets 11 1440.09 1410.85
- Intangible assets 11 3.10 5.46
- Capital work-in-progress 749.20 192.14
Non-current investments 12 100.89 93.56
Long-term loans and advances 13 74.44 118.63
Other non-current assets 14 - 0.17

2367.72 1820.81
Current Assets
Inventories 15 661.54 688.60
Trade receivables 16 867.36 708.05
Cash and bank balances 17 78.42 85.11
Short-term loans and advances 18 265.23 210.35
Other current assets 19 88.18 6.38

1960.73 1698.49
TOTAL 4328.45 3519.30

Significant Accounting Policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA

SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA

Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors
ARVIND SINGH MEWAR

BAKUL JAIN

VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2012 ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note No. 2011-2012 2010-2011

Revenue from operations 20 6148.59 5266.78

Less : Excise Duty 504.88 436.65

Net Revenue from operations 5643.71 4830.13

Other income 21 3.50 3.99

Total Revenue [ I ] 5647.21 4834.12

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 22 4108.59 3650.14

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 23 60.99 36.59

(Increase) / decrease in inventories of finished

goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade 24 84.95 (165.92)

Employee benefits expense 25 294.80 271.16

Other expenses 26 814.91 747.83

Total [ II ] 5364.24 4539.80

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (PBIDT) [ I - II ] 282.97 294.32

Finance costs 27 170.43 98.08

Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 101.41 91.10

Profit before exceptional items and tax 11.13 105.14

Exceptional Items 43 1.67 (13.47)

Profit before tax 12.80 91.67

Tax Expenses:

- Current Tax 1.73 24.59

- Mat Credit Entitlement (2.63) -

- Deferred Tax 2.70 5.76

Profit after tax 11.00 61.32

Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share (`): 44

- Cash 28.04 38.52

- After Tax 2.68 14.93

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA

SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA

Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors
ARVIND SINGH MEWAR

BAKUL JAIN

VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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Notes to financial statements

NOTE – 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1 The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention (except for certain fixed assets which were

revalued) on accrual basis in compliance with applicable Accounting Standards notified by the Companies (Accounting

Standards) Rules, 2006 and relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956.

1.2 Fixed assets are stated at cost adjusted by revaluation of certain assets.

1.3 Expenditure during construction / erection period is included under capital work-in-progress and is allocated to the respective

fixed assets on completion of construction / erection.

1.4 a) Depreciation on fixed assets has been provided using Straight Line Method at rates and manner prescribed under Schedule

XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.  Continuous process Plants as defined in Schedule XIV have been considered on technical

evaluation.

b) Leasehold Land is being amortised over the lease period.

c) Depreciation on the increased amount of assets due to revaluation is computed on the basis of residual life of the assets as

estimated by the valuer on straight line method.

1.5 Lease which does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership is classified as Operating Lease and is recognized

as expense as and when incurred over the lease-term.

1.6 Foreign currency transactions are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and

liabilities in foreign currencies as at the Balance Sheet date are translated at exchange rate prevailing at the year end. Premium

in respect of forward contracts is recognised over the life of contract. Exchange differences arising on actual payments /

realizations and year end translations including on forward contracts are dealt with in Profit and Loss Account except exchange

differences arising on Long term foreign currency monetary items, related to acquisition of depreciable capital assets, which

are adjusted to cost of such assets pursuant to the option in Notification No.G.S.R 914(E) Dated: 29th December, 2011 issued by

Ministry of Corporate Affairs.  Non Monetary Foreign Currency items are stated at cost.

1.7 Long Term Investments are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long term Investments is made only if, such a

decline is other than temporary. The Current Investments are stated at lower of cost or quoted / fair value computed category-

wise.

1.8 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished

Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

1.9 Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development is charged to Profit & Loss Account and Capital Expenditure is added to

Fixed Assets.

1.10 Borrowing Cost is charged to Profit & Loss Account except cost of borrowings for acquisition of qualifying assets which is capitalised

till the date of commercial use of the asset.

1.11 The carrying amount of Assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to assess impairment, if any based on internal /

external factors. An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value being higher of

value in use and net selling price. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Profit & Loss Account in the year in

which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed, if there has

been an improvement in recoverable amount.

1.12 Employee Benefits:

a) Defined-contribution plans

Contributions to the Employees’ Regional Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund, Employees Pension Scheme and Employees’

State Insurance are recognised as defined contribution plan and charged as expenses during the period in which the

employees perform the services.

b) Defined-benefit plans

Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity and Leave Encashment are considered as defined benefit plan and determined

on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance sheet date. Actuarial Gains and Losses are

recognised immediately in the Profit & Loss Account.

The Provident Fund Contribution other than contribution to Employees’ Regional Provident Fund, is made to trust administered

by the trustees. The interest rate to the members of the trust shall not be lower than the statutory rate declared by the Central

Government under Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. The Employer shall make good

deficiency, if any.

c) Short term employee benefits:

Short term benefits are charged off at the undiscounted amount in the year in which the related service is rendered.

1.13 Export incentives and other benefits are recognised in the Profit & Loss Account. Project subsidy is credited to Capital Reserve.

1.14 Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the estimated taxable income for the current year as per the provisions of Income

Tax Act, 1961. Deferred Tax is recognised for timing differences. However, Deferred Tax Asset is recognised on the basis of

reasonable / virtual certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which the same can be realised.

1.15 Intangible Assets are being recognised if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to flow to the

company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The same are being amortised over the expected duration of

benefits.
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` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at
Note - 2 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised :
Equity Shares - 12,50,00,000 of  ` 10 each 125.00 125.00
14% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares - 7.00 7.00
7,00,000 of  ` 100 each
Preference Shares - 48,00,000 of  ` 100 each 48.00 48.00

180.00 180.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :
Equity Shares (with equal rights)- 4,10,59,346 of  ` 10 each fully paid up 41.06 41.06
(Previous Year: 4,10,59,346 Equity Shares of  ` 10 each)

41.06 41.06

Details of each shareholder holding more than 5% shares: No. of No. of
Shares held Shares held

Name of Shareholder As at As at
31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Bengal & Assam Company Limited  85,89,250 84,34,250
Fenner India Limited  36,00,000 36,00,000
JK Agri Genetics Limited  60,34,070 60,34,070
Edgefield Securities Limited  34,87,500 34,87,500

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding: As at As at
31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Shares outstanding as at the beginning of the year  4,10,59,346 4,10,59,346
Addition during the year                - -
Deletion during the year                - -
Shares outstanding as at the end of the year  4,10,59,346 4,10,59,346

` in Crores (10 Million)

Note - 3 31.03.2011 Additions Transfers 31.03.2012

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Redemption Reserve 7.00 - - 7.00
Securities Premium Reserve 218.09 - 0.39 (a) 217.70
Debenture Redemption Reserve 0.71 - 0.71 -
Revaluation Reserve 83.78 - 42.80 (b) 40.98
General Reserve 315.34 10.00 - 325.34
Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement  (c) 48.74 - 10.22 38.52

673.66 10.00 54.12 629.54

Previous Year 652.36 80.38 59.08 673.66

(a) Provision for premium on redemption of Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures.
(b) ` 23.37 crs. towards depreciation arising out of revaluation transferred to Profit & Loss Statement and ` 19.43 crs.

adjusted for Fixed Assets sold / transferred.
(c) Detail of Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement: As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement from Previous Year 48.74 78.27
Profit for the year 11.00 61.32
Debenture Redemption Reserve no longer required 0.71 3.85
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - (0.38)
Transfer to General Reserve (10.00) (80.00)
Proposed Dividend (@ ` 2.50 per equity share) (10.26) (12.32)
Corporate Dividend Tax (1.67) (2.00)

Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement carried to Balance sheet 38.52 48.74
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` in Crores (10 Million)

Non Current Current*

As at As at As at As at
Note - 4 31.03.2012 31.03.2011 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED LOANS
Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures - - - 2.82
Term Loans:
- Financial Institutions 94.29 - - -
- Banks 650.87 192.28 35.75 38.49
- Others 57.29 65.52 8.22 8.22
Deferred Sales Tax 5.52 17.73 12.21 16.38

807.97 275.53 56.18 65.91

UNSECURED LOANS
Deferred Sales Tax 97.21 104.63 24.30 -
Fixed Deposits 22.41 33.84 20.25 16.35
Loan from Bank 50.00 - - -

169.62 138.47 44.55 16.35

977.59 414.00 100.73 82.26

Less:  Amount Disclosed under the head

"Other Current Liabilities" (Note No. 9) - - (100.73) (82.26)

977.59 414.00 - -

* Payable during next 12 months.

Notes:

1 (a) 27353 Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures (ZCNCDs) of ` 10,000 each issued to a Bank, outstanding
as on 31.03.2012 - Nil, were secured by first pari passu charge created on the specified property of Gujarat
and movable and immovable properties of Company’s Plants in Karnataka, both present and future. These
debentures were redeemable at premium based on a YTM of 13.75% p.a upto 30.06.2005 and a YTM of
9% p.a. w.e.f. 01.07.2005 with quarterly rests in five instalments at the end of 3 to 7 years from the respective
dates of payment of allotment money / call money.

(b) 9057 Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures (ZCNCDs) of ` 10,000 each issued to Financial Institutions,
outstanding as on 31.03.2012 - Nil, were secured by first pari passu charge created on the specified property
of Gujarat and movable and immovable properties of Company’s Plants in Karnataka, both present and
future. 2656 ZCNCDs were redeemable at premium based on a YTM of 13.75% p.a. and 6401 ZCNCDs
were redeemable at premium based on a YTM of 13.75% p.a. reduced to a YTM of 9% p.a. w.e.f. various
dates during January, 2006 to March, 2006 with quarterly rests in five instalments at the end of 3 to 7 years
from the respective dates of payment of allotment money / call money.

2. Term Loan of ` 40 crs. from a Bank, secured by a first pari passu charge created on movable and immovable
properties of Company’s Plant in Madhya Pradesh, both present and future is repayable in 28 equal quarterly
instalments commencing from 01.08.2012.

3. Term Loans from Banks outstanding as at 31.03.2012 - Nil, were secured by a first pari passu charge created on
movable and immovable properties of the Company’s Plants in Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh and Karnataka,
both present and future.

4. Term Loans aggregating ` 146.99 crs. from Banks are secured by a first pari passu charge created on movable
and immovable properties at a Company’s Plant in Karnataka, both present and future and also secured by
way of hypothecation created / to be created on the specified movable assets at Company’s Plants in Rajasthan,
Madhya Pradesh and Karnataka. Term Loan from one bank amounting to ` 76.99 crs. is repayable in 24 equal
quarterly instalments and from another bank ` 70 crs. is repayable in 21 equal quarterly instalments.

5. Term Loans aggregating ` 60 crs. from Banks, secured by a first pari passu charge created / to be created on
movable and immovable properties at a Company’s Plant in Karnataka, both present and future are repayable
in 36 equal quarterly instalments commencing from 01.04.2014.

6. Term Loans aggregating ̀  434.33 crs. from Banks and Foreign Currency Loan from a Financial Institution amounting
to ` 94.29 crs. (including ` 4.29 crs. for foreign exchange fluctuation), secured by a first pari passu charge
created on movable and immovable properties at a Company’s Plant in Tamilnadu, both present and future
are repayable in 36 equal quarterly instalments commencing from 01.04.2014.
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7. Term Loan of ` 5.25 crs. from a Bank, secured by an exclusive charge by way of hypothecation of specified
assets at Company’s Plants in Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh and Karnataka is repayable in 3 equal quarterly
instalments.

8. Term Loan of ` 0.05 cr. from a Bank and ` 0.13 cr. from a body corporate, secured by hypothecation of specified
vehicles are repayable in 8 and 30 equated monthly instalments respectively.

9. Term Loan of ` 65.38 crs. from a body corporate to be secured by way of hypothecation on the specified assets
at a Company’s Plant in Karnataka is repayable in 32 equal quarterly instalments.

10. Term Loans carrying first pari passu charge on the movable and immovable properties, are subject to prior
charge of banks on stocks and book debts for working capital borrowings.

11. (a) Deferred Sales Tax aggregating ` 17.73 crs. from Madhya Pradesh State Industrial Development Corporation
Limited, secured by first available charge on movable and immovable properties (created subject to charges
referred to in note 2, 3, 4 & 7 on movable and immovable properties of Company’s Plant in Madhya
Pradesh) is repayable as ` 12.21 crs. in April 2012 and ` 5.52 crs. in April 2013.

(b) Deferred Sales Tax Loan aggregating ̀  Nil from Government of Karnataka subordinated to loans from Financial
Institutions, is secured by a second charge on immovable properties of the Company’s Plant in Karnataka.

12. Unsecured Deferred Sales Tax ` 121.51 crs. is repayable in 5 equal annual instalments commencing
from January 2013.

13. Fixed Deposits of ` 20.25 crs., ` 14.86 crs. and ` 7.55 crs. (aggregating ` 42.66 crs.) are due for repayment in
2012-2013, 2013-2014 and 2014-2015 respectively.

14. Unsecured loan from a bank amounting to ` 50 crs. is repayable during January 2014.

Note - 5

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) ` in Crores (10 Million)

Pursuant to the accounting standard on ‘Accounting for Taxes As at As at
on Income’ (AS-22), deferred tax liability / (asset) are as under: 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

1. Deferred Tax Liability related to Fixed Assets 190.19 156.25

2. Deferred Tax Assets
(i) Expenses / Provision Allowable 11.97 11.39
(ii) Unabsorbed depreciation 30.66 42.63 - 11.39

3. Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - Net 147.56 144.86

` in Crores (10 Million)
As at As at

Note - 6 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Trade Deposits & Others 344.02 302.23

344.02 302.23
Note - 7

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS
Provision for Employee Benefits 9.43 5.65

9.43 5.65
Note - 8

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED LOANS
Repayable on demand from Banks * 588.72 417.24

588.72 417.24
UNSECURED LOANS
Fixed Deposits 5.43 12.55

Short Term Loans from Banks 106.30 388.94

111.73 401.49

700.45 818.73

* Represents Working Capital borrowings secured by hypothecation of stocks and book debts etc. of the Company, both present and future and second

charge created / to be created on movable and immovable properties of the Company’s Plants in Rajasthan, Madhya Pradesh, Karnataka and Tamilnadu.
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` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at
Note - 9 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 100.73 82.26
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 10.05 4.30
Unclaimed dividends # 0.58 0.50
Unclaimed / Uncollected Fixed Deposits and interest accrued thereon # 1.85 1.64
Others:
- Government  and Other Statutory Dues 88.69 78.58
- Other Payables 150.89 114.36

352.79 281.64
#  Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.

Note - 10

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits 2.18 4.18

Others:

- Provision for Taxation 81.73 80.00

- Proposed Dividend 10.26 12.32

- Provision for Corporate Dividend Tax 1.67 2.00

95.84 98.50

Note - 11

FIXED ASSETS ` in Crores (10 Million)

Gross Value Depreciation/Amortisation Net Value

Particulars As at Additions/ Sales/ As at Upto For the Sales/ Upto As at As at
31.03.2011 Adjustments^ Adjustments 31.03.2012 31.3.2011 Year Adjustments 31.03.2012 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

(i) Tangible Assets

Land - Freehold 12.60  -  - 12.60  -  -  -  - 12.60 12.60

        - Leasehold 10.67  - 0.01 10.66 0.99 0.11  - 1.10 9.56 9.68

Buildings * 299.45 22.07  - 321.52 65.50 8.17  - 73.67 247.85 233.95

Plant & Equipments 2346.53 151.93 125.79 2372.67 1229.16 110.22 102.80 1236.58 1136.09 1117.37

Furnitue and Fixtures 16.34 1.42 3.02 14.74 9.24 0.69 2.16 7.77 6.97 7.10

Office Equipments 11.58 0.60 0.30 11.88 4.42 0.53 0.19 4.76 7.12 7.16

Vehicles 28.38 5.58 7.86 26.10 5.39 2.70 1.89 6.20 19.90 22.99

2725.55 181.60 136.98 2770.17 1314.70 122.42 107.04 1330.08 1440.09 1410.85

Previous Year 2550.12 180.62 5.19 2725.55 1205.16 112.19 2.65 1314.70 1410.85

(ii) Intangible Assets

Software # 11.78  -  - 11.78 6.32 2.36  - 8.68 3.10 5.46

11.78  -  - 11.78 6.32 2.36  - 8.68 3.10 5.46

Previous Year 11.78  -  - 11.78 3.97 2.35  - 6.32 5.46

* Buildings include ` 2.05 crs. constructed on lease land, 274 shares held in co-operative housing societies and property worth ` 0.46 cr. yet to

be registered in Company's name.

# Being amortised over a period of 5 years.

^ Includes capitalisation of finance cost - Buildings ` 0.96 cr. and Plant & Machinery ` 5.19 crs.

Factory & Service buildings and Plant and Equipments of Company’s Plant at Jaykaygram were revalued as at 1st January 1985 & 1st April 1991.

On 1st April 1997 the revaluation of such assets was updated along with similar assets of Banmore plant. The revaluation of said assets of Jaykaygram

and Banmore was further updated alongwith Factory Land and Township building as at 1st April 2002 based on replacement cost by a Valuer. The

Gross Value includes cumulative surplus of ` 567.43 crs. as at 31.03.2012 (Previous year:  ` 667.23 crs.) arising on revaluation.
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As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011
Note - 12 Numbers ` in Crores Numbers ` in Crores

(10 Million) (10 Million)
NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Long-term)

(Other Than Trade)

Investment in Equity Shares:

Subsidiary Companies:

Lankros Holdings Limited  (Euro 1 Each) * 40,02,000 26.31 40,02,000 26.31
Sarvi Holdings Switzerland AG (CHF 1000 each) * 100 0.40 100 0.40
JK Tornel S.A. de C.V. (Mexican Pesos 1000 each) * 25 0.01 25 0.01
J.K.International Ltd.(£1 each) 1,35,000 0.61 1,35,000 0.61
J.K.Asia Pacific Ltd. (HK$ 1 each) 19,99,999 0.71 19,99,999 0.71

Associate Company:

Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer & Tyre Research Institute (` 100 each) 24 24
(` 2400; As at 31.03.2011 : ` 2400)

Others:

HDFC Bank Ltd. (` 2 each) (` 10000; As at 31.03.2011 : ` 10000) ^ 5,000 1,000
Bengal & Assam Company Ltd. (` 10 each) 11,641 0.05 11,641 0.05
JK Sugar Ltd. (` 10 each) 1,673,000 2.68 - -
V. S. Lignite Power Pvt. Ltd. (` 10 each) # 5,77,778 0.58 5,77,778 0.58
Dwarkesh Energy Ltd. (` 10 each) 3,50,000 0.35 - -
J.K.I. Employees Co-operative Credit Society Ltd. (` 1000 each) 5 5
(` 5000; As at 31.03.2011 : ` 5000)
Larsen & Toubro Ltd. (` 2 each) ** 2,800 0.37 2,800 0.46
Reliance Industries Ltd. (` 10 each) ** 4,360 0.33 4,360 0.46

Investment in Preference Shares:

V. S. Lignite Power Pvt. Ltd. (` 10 each) (0.01% Cumulative Redeemable) # 11,14,222 1.11 11,14,222 1.11
J.K.Sugar Ltd. (8% Cumulative Redeemable preference shares) 15,00,000 13.50 - -
(` 90 each) (CRPS Series - A)
J.K.Sugar Ltd. (8% Cumulative Redeemable preference shares) 1,85,338 1.67 - -
(` 90 each) (CRPS Series - B)
J.K.Sugar Ltd. (Zero coupon preference shares) (` 100 each) - - 15,00,000 13.50
J.K.Sugar Ltd. (Zero coupon Fully Convertible Redeemable preference 28,50,134 2.85 - -
shares) (` 10 each)

Investment in Bonds:

J.K.Agri Genetics Ltd. (` 4250 each) (Zero coupon secured 1,00,000 42.50 1,00,000 42.50
non-convertible bonds)
7.65% HDFC Bonds (` 10 lacs each) 14 1.35 14 1.35
8.00% Himachal Pradesh Infrastructure Development Board (` 10 lacs each) 10 1.00 10 1.00
10.35% HDFC Bonds (` 10 lacs each) 9 0.94 9 0.94
8.96% HDFC Bonds (` 10 lacs each) 33 3.32 33 3.32

Investment in Mutual Fund:

LIC Mutual Fund Growth Fund (` 10 each) 2,50,000 0.25 2,50,000 0.25

Investment in Government or Trust Securities:

Government Securities (Deposited with Government Department)
National Savings Certificates (` 25000; As at 31.03.2011 : ` 25000)

100.89 93.56

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments 3.43 0.97
Market Value of quoted Investments 3.59 1.44
Aggregate amount of unquoted Investments 97.46 92.59
Aggregate provision for diminuiton in value of Investments 0.32 0.09

# Under lien with Issuer.

* Pledged with bank for loans availed by certain foreign subsidiaries.

** Net of provision for diminution.

^ Sub-division of one equity share of face value of ` 10 each into five equity shares of face value of ` 2 each.
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` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at
Note - 13 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

LONG-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES (Unsecured - Considered Good)

Advances - Project related 46.19 95.74

Security Deposits with Govt. Authorities and Others 28.25 22.89

74.44 118.63

Note - 14

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Balances on Deposit Accounts * - 0.17

- 0.17

* Pledged with banks as margin money against bank guarantees. Maturity more than 12 months.

Note - 15

INVENTORIES

Raw Materials * 341.08 296.01

Work-in-Progress 52.40 41.28

Finished Goods ** 231.14 320.19

Stock-in-trade 4.04 5.83

Stores and Spares 32.88 25.29

661.54 688.60

* Includes raw materials in transit ` 45.20 crs. (Previous Year - ` 36.36 crs.)

** Includes finished goods in transit ` 2.62 crs. (Previous Year - ` 0.94 cr.)

Note - 16

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured)

(a) Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
are due for payment

Considered Good 12.13 10.21

Doubtful 3.38 3.23

Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts (3.38) (3.23)

(b) Others (Considered Good) 855.23 697.84

867.36 708.05
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` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at
Note - 17 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

CASH & BANK BALANCES

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks :

On Current Accounts 8.88 6.12

On Deposit Accounts 0.19  -

On Dividend Accounts 0.58 0.50

Remittances in transit and Cheques on hand 68.71 78.43

Cash on hand 0.06 0.06

(b) Other Bank Balances

On Deposit Accounts  - 0.17

78.42 85.28

Less : Amount disclosed under Other Non-current Assets - Note No. 14  - (0.17)

78.42 85.11

Note - 18

SHORT-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES (Considered Good)

Secured Loan  - 0.62

Unsecured:

Loans  - 6.30

Loans & advances to related parties 7.22 10.28

Balance with Excise and Sales tax Authorities 125.58 58.69

Export Benefit Receivable 6.58 11.81

Prepaid Expenses 7.50 7.54

MAT Credit Entitlements 11.37 8.74

Income Tax Advance Payments 82.35 78.43

Other Advances 24.63 * 27.94

265.23 210.35

* Other Advances include Share Application Money of ` 3 crs. paid to Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.

(a Power Project SPV) for subscribing to the Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable

Preference Shares (Face value ` 100 each) of  ` 10 crs.

Note - 19

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables against Sale of Fixed Assets 87.74  -

Interest Accrued on Investments 0.44 0.44

Unbilled Revenue  - 5.94

88.18 6.38
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` in Crores (10 Million)

Note - 20 2011-2012 2010-2011

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Sale of Products

Tyres 5577.93 4766.08
Tubes & Others 548.57 480.41

Sale of Services
Royalty 4.52 3.73

Other operating revenues:
Miscellaneous Income 17.57 16.37
Provision of earlier years, no longer required  - 0.19

6148.59 5266.78
Note - 21

OTHER INCOME
Income from Long-term Investments
- Dividends 0.01 0.01
- Interest 0.58 0.55
Other Interest Income 2.91 3.43

3.50 3.99
Note - 22

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Rubber 2691.26 2375.94
Reinforcement Material 574.88 517.87
Carbon Black 398.33 327.35
Chemicals & Others 444.12 428.98

4108.59 3650.14

Indigenous 2743.40 2605.07
% of Total 66.77 71.37
Imported 1365.19 1045.07
% of Total 33.23 28.63
Raw materials consumed has been determined after adjusting ` 6.58 crs. (Previous year: ` 11.81 crs.) accounted for
on accrual basis in respect of import entitlements against exports made under Duty Exemption Scheme.

Note - 23

PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE
Tyres 0.27 1.07
Tubes 14.61  -
Flaps 46.11 35.52

60.99 36.59
Note - 24

(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,
WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE
Opening Stock

Finished Goods 320.19 161.13
Work-in-Progress 41.28 23.56
Stock-in-Trade 5.83 3.95

(A) 367.30 188.64
Closing Stock

Finished Goods 228.49* 320.19
Work-in-Progress 47.45* 41.28
Stock-in-Trade 4.04 5.83

(B) 279.98 367.30
Differential Excise Duty on Increase / Decrease of Finished Goods (C) 2.37 (12.74)
(Increase) / Decrease in Stocks (A-B-C) 84.95 (165.92)
* Exclude Trial period stocks - Finished Goods ` 2.65 crs. and Work-in-Progress ` 4.95 crs.
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` in Crores (10 Million)

Note - 25 2011-2012 2010-2011

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 204.76 186.37

Contribution to Provident and other Funds 29.31 28.58

Employees' Welfare and other Benefits 60.73 56.21

294.80 271.16
Note - 26

OTHER EXPENSES

Conversion Charges 47.49 67.42

Consumption of Stores and spares ** 43.06 41.93

Power and Fuel 224.32 184.18

Rent 15.24 7.34

Repairs to Buildings 3.11 3.99

Repairs to Machinery 12.04 11.80

Insurance 2.68 2.70

Rates & Taxes 10.89 8.97

Discount 172.04 160.58

Freight and Transportation 129.68 111.73

Advertisement and sales promotion 48.69 41.28

Royalty  - 7.11

Commission 27.06 23.13

Loss / (Profit) on sale of Assets (Net)  - 0.04

Provision for Diminution in value of long-term investments (2010-11: ` 41746) 0.23

Bad Debts written off 0.43  -

Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances 0.60 0.50

Bank Charges, Printing & Stationery, Postage, Telephone, Travelling,

Directors' Fee and other Miscellaneous Expenses 77.35 75.13

814.91 747.83

** Break up of consumption of Stores & Spares

Indigenous 40.43 39.70

% of Total 93.89 94.68

Imported 2.63 2.23

% of Total 6.11 5.32

Note - 27

FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses 168.72 96.34

Other Borrowing Costs 1.71 1.74

170.43 98.08

Note - 28

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation and Amortisation 124.78 114.54

Less : Transfer from Revaluation Reserve (23.37) (23.44)

101.41 91.10
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29. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account ` 145.19 crs. (Previous year:
` 415.59 crs.).

30. Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 41.75 crs. (Previous year: ` 37.64
crs.) pertaining to Excise duty matters in appeal `. 4.47 crs., Service tax matters ` 0.04 cr., Sales Tax matters in
appeal  ` 5.59 crs., Income tax matters in appeal ` 10.54 crs. & other matters ` 21.11 crs. (Previous year: ` 4.45
crs., ` 1.49 crs., ` 3.40 crs., ` 6.76 crs. & ` 21.54 crs. respectively).

31. Bills discounted with Banks outstanding ` 12.53 crs. (Previous year: ` 13.65 crs.).

32. Excise Duty liability on account of valuation of Finished Goods is disputed and is yet to be determined. Without
prejudice to the Company’s stand in this behalf, as per Government’s desire an adhoc amount of ` 5.45 crs.
was paid under protest in earlier years and debited to ‘Advances Recoverable’ and an equivalent amount
was provided in Profit and Loss Account. On Writ Petition filed by the Company in the Hon’ble Delhi High Court,
the said Court directed the Excise Authorities to determine the valuation of finished goods in accordance with
law and observations made in the order.

33. Capital work-in-progress includes Machinery in stock / transit, construction / erection materials, cost paid for
land and the following pre-operative expenses pending allocation:

 ` in Crores (10 Million)

31.03.2012  31.03.2011

Raw Material Consumption 13.92 7.34

Stores Consumption 0.27 0.45

Employee Benefit Expense 18.20 6.12

Rates and Taxes (including excise) 0.58 1.24

Insurance Expenses 0.50 0.24

Power and Fuel Consumed 7.23 2.41

Finance Cost 38.81 15.28

Unrealised Exchange Fluctuation on borrowings 4.29 -

Miscellaneous expenditure 6.38 3.81

90.18 36.89

Less : Sales 1.00 13.39

Scrap Sale 0.49 -

Closing Stock of Finished Goods 2.65 -

Closing Stock of Work-in-progress 4.95 -

81.09 23.50

Add: Expenditure upto previous year 16.54 9.24

97.63 32.74

Less: Transferred to Fixed Assets 11.33 16.20

86.29 16.54

34. Debts over six months / Advances include ` 2.98 crs. (Previous year: ` 3.40 crs.) for which legal and other
necessary action has been taken. In the opinion of the Management, these debts are recoverable and the
same have been classified as good.

35. In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income Tax Authorities, appeals are pending
before the Appellate Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same are finally determined.

36. The Company has taken certain specified Plant & Machinery on operating lease basis, which is cancellable at
the option of lessee.

37. The Company has worked out reversal of Modvat Credit availed on exports under Value Based Advance
Licence in earlier years and reversed the same in accounts. Pursuant to special scheme announced by the
Government, the Company has also paid interest on such reversals. Further, the Excise department has issued
certain basis for reversal of Modvat, which is disputed and has been contested by the Company in a Writ
Petition before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court and directions have been issued to treat the reversal already
made by the Company as provisional.
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38. a. Forward Contracts for hedging Payables – ` 7.39 crs. - US $ 1.40 Million, ` 19.28 crs. – Euro 2.78 Million and
` 1.30 crs. – GBP 0.15 Million (Previous year ` 207.71 crs. - US $ 44.74 Million, ` 152.17 crs. – Euro 24.25 Million
and ` 9.30 crs. – GBP 1.26 Million) and for hedging receivables - ` 57.89 crs. - US $ 12.00 Million (Previous
year: Nil). are outstanding as at 31.03.2012.

b. Foreign currency exposure unhedged net payable is ` 604.73 crs. – US $ 118.21 Million (Previous year:
` 94.42 crs. – US $ 21.15 Million) as at 31.03.2012.

39. The details of amounts outstanding under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
(MSMED Act) to the extent of information available with the Company are as under:

(i) Principal & Interest amount due and remaining unpaid as at 31.03.2012: Nil (Previous year: Nil), (ii) Payment
made beyond the appointed day during the year: Nil (Previous year: Nil) and (iii) Interest Accrued and unpaid
as at 31.03.2012: Nil (Previous year: Nil).

40. The Company has not provided diminution in the value of certain long term strategic investments, since in the
opinion of the Board, such diminution in their value is temporary in nature, considering the inherent value,
nature of investments, the investees’ assets and expected future cash flow from such investments.

41. Expenditure on Research and Development (R&D) activities during the year:

 ` in Crores (10 Million)

2011-2012 2010-2011

i) Revenue Expenditure*:

1. Employee Cost 4.63 4.15

2. Cost of Materials and Testing Charges 12.76 10.86

3. Other R & D Expenses 2.90 5.41

Sub total (i) 20.29 20.42

ii) Capital Expenditure 1.21 3.52

Total (i+ii) 21.50 23.94

* Included in respective revenue accounts.

42. Amount paid to Auditors :

i) Statutory Auditors

a) Audit Fee 0.16 0.16

b) Taxation 0.01 0.01

c) Certificates / other services 0.04 0.03

d) Reimbursement of expenses 0.03 0.02

ii) Cost Auditors

a) Audit Fee 0.01  0.01

b) Reimbursement of expenses ` 27123 (Previous year: ` 40756)

43. Exceptional items include net impact of unfavourable Foreign Exchange Rate fluctuation `. 63.17 crs (Previous
Year: `. 12.84 crs.), net gain on sale of certain assets `. 76.42 crs. (Previous Year: Nil), and expenditure on
Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) for the employees `. 11.58 crs. (Previous Year: `. 0.63 cr.).

44. Earnings Per Share
` in Crores (10 Million)

2011-2012  2010-2011

a. Profit after Tax 11.00 61.32

b. Weighted average number of equity shares 41059346 41059346

c. Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity shares (`) (Face Value ` 10 each)

- Cash 28.04 38.52

- After Tax 2.68 14.93

45. Exchange differences arising on Long term foreign currency borrowings related to acquisition of depreciable
fixed assets, which hitherto was charged to Profit & Loss Account, is now being adjusted to cost of such
assets. Accordingly, a sum of ` 4.29 crs. is added to cost of fixed assets during the year.
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46. The disclosures required under Accounting Standard 15 “Employee Benefits” notified in the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 are as given below:

(a) Defined Benefit Plan -

( i )     ` in Crores (10 Million)

Particulars Leave Encashment Gratuity

  (Non Funded) (Funded)

  2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11

I Expenses recognised in the Statement of

Profit & Loss Account *

1 Current Service Cost 2.82 3.00 6.14 6.75

2 Interest Cost 0.70 0.66 5.20 4.56

3 Expected return on plan assets -  - (5.62) (4.94)

4 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 2.71 0.51 2.12 2.34

5 Total expense 6.23 4.17 7.84 8.71

II Net Asset / (Liability) recognised in the Balance

Sheet as at year end

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 11.15 9.35 66.60 64.20

2 Fair value of plan assets -  - 69.44 66.65

3 Funded status [Surplus / (Deficit)] (11.15) (9.35) 2.84 2.45

4 Net asset / (liability) (11.15) (9.35) 2.84 2.45

III Change in obligation during the year

1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at the
beginning of the year 9.35 8.36 64.20 55.21

2 Current Service Cost 2.82 3.00 6.14 6.75

3 Interest Cost 0.70 0.66 5.20 4.56

4 Actuarial (Gains) / Losses 2.71 0.51 2.00 1.59

5 Benefits Payments (4.43) (3.18) (10.94) (3.91)

6 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation as at
year end 11.15 9.35 66.60 64.20

IV Change in Assets during the year

1 Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year  -  - 66.65 51.15
2 Expected return on plan assets  -  - 5.62 4.94
3 Contributions by employers 4.43 3.18 8.22 15.22
4 Actual benefits paid (4.43) (3.18) (10.94) (3.91)
5 Actuarial gains / (losses) -  - (0.12) (0.75)
6 Fair value of plan assets as at year end -  - 69.43 66.65
7 Total Actual Return on Plan Assets -  - 5.50 4.19

V The major categories of plan assets as % of total plan

Insurer Managed Funds -  - 100% 100%

VI Actuarial Assumptions :

1 Discount Rate 8.50% 8.25% 8.50% 8.25%

2 Expected rate of return on plan assets -  - 8.60% 8.00%

3 Mortality LIC (1994-96) Ultimate

4 Salary Escalation 5%
  

* Included Under the head Employee Benefit Expenses - Refer Note 25.



47

(ii) The expected return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors mainly the
composition of the plan assets held, assessed risks of assets management, historical results of return on
plan assets and the policy for plan assets management.

(iii) The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

(iv) Contributions to PF (trust) during the 12 months ended 31st March, 2012 of ` 0.93 cr. (Previous Year:
` 0.89 cr.) has been included under the head Employee Benefit Expenses. (Refer Note 25)

Pending the issuance of the Guidance Note from the Institute of Actuaries of India, the Company’s actuary
has expressed his inability to reliably measure the provident fund liability.

(b) Defined Contribution Plans -

Employer’s Contributions to Provident and other Funds charged off during the 12 months ended 31st March,
2012 of ` 20.54 crs. (Previous Year: ` 18.98 crs.) has been included under the head Employee Benefit
Expenses. (Refer Note 25).

47. Related Parties:

a) Subsidiaries:

J. K. International Ltd.

J. K. Asia Pacific Ltd.

J. K. Asia Pacific (S) Pte. Ltd. (Subs. of J. K. Asia Pacific Ltd.)

Lankros Holdings Ltd.

Sarvi Holdings Switzerland AG. (Subs. of Lankros Holdings Ltd.)

JK Tornel S.A.de C.V. (JKTSA - Subs. of Sarvi Holdings Switzerland AG.)

Comercializadora América Universal, S.A. de C.V.*

Compañía Hulera Tacuba, S.A. de C.V. *

Compañía Hulera Tornel, S.A. de C.V. (CHT)*

Compañía Inmobiliaria Norida, S.A. de C.V. *

General de Inmuebles Industriales, S.A. de C.V. *

Gintor Administración, S.A. de C.V. *

Hules y Procesos Tornel, S.A. de C.V. *

* Subsidiary of JKTSA

b) Associates:

Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre Research Institute (HASETRI)

Valiant Pacific LLC. (VPL)

c) Key Management Personnel (KMP):

Dr. Raghupati Singhania Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Shri Bharat Hari Singhania Managing Director

Shri Vikrampati Singhania Dy. Managing Director

Shri Swaroop Chand Sethi Whole Time Director

Shri Arun Kumar Bajoria President & Director

d) Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise Significant Influence:

JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd. (JKLC)

Fenner India Ltd. (FIL)
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I. The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:

` in Crores (10 Million)

Nature of Transaction Subsidiaries Associates Enterprise TOTAL
over which
KMP is able
 to exercise
Significant
Influence

Purchase of cement from JKLC & Spares from FIL 0.12 0.12
Purchase of cement from JKLC & Spares from FIL   (0.12) (0.12)
Purchase of Capital Items from FIL 0.02 0.02
Purchase of Capital Items from CHT (0.53)   (0.53)
Purchase of Tyres from CHT (0.01)  (0.01)
Sale of Capital items to CHT, FIL 0.02 87.78 87.80
Sale of Capital Items to CHT (0.56)  (0.56)
Sale of Tyres to VPL & JKLC 369.40 0.86 370.26
Sale of Tyres to HASETRI, VPL - 258.70 & JKLC  (258.71) (1.29) (260.00)
Sale of Stores to HASETRI 0.05 0.05
Sale of Raw Material & Stores to CHT & HASETRI (0.02) (0.03)  (0.05)
Sharing of Expenses received - HASETRI, JKLC & FIL-0.71 1.30 1.23 2.53
Sharing of Expenses received – CHT, HASETRI, JKLC & FIL-0.56 (0. 24) (1. 24) (1.04) (2.52)
Sharing of Expenses paid – CHT, JKLC & FIL – 0.46 0.13 0.89 1.02
Sharing of Expenses paid - JKLC- 0.25 & FIL – 0.46  (0.71) (0.71)
Services Availed – HASETRI – 10.34, VPL, FIL & JKLC – 3.07 10.45 3.08 13.53
Services Availed – HASETRI – 5.98, VPL & JKLC (6.06) (2.51) (8.57)
Loans / Advances given – CHT, JKTSA-0.19, HASETRI, FIL -0.28 & JKLC 0.24 0.67 0.34 1.25
Loans / Advances given - CHT, HASETRI-7.21, VPL, JKLC-2.15 & FIL (0.03) (7.28) (2.43) (9.74)
Loans / Advances recovered - CHT, JKTSA – 4.37, HASETRI & FIL 4.62 0.50 0.58 5.70
Loans / Advances recovered - CHT - 4.12, JKTSA, HASETRI-2.70 , VPL & JKLC (5.04) (3.03) (0.60) (8.67)
Loans / Advances received – CHT, HASETRI, VPL, JKLC – 0.45 & FIL 0.07 0.03 0.49 0.59
Loans / Advances received - HASETRI, VPL, JKLC -2.92 & FIL (0.21) (2.95) (3.16)
Loans / Advances repaid – VPL & FIL 0.24 0.01 0.25
Loans / Advances repaid -HASETRI, VPL, JKLC-4.91 & FIL (0.15) (5.14) (5.29)
Lease Rent paid to FIL 0.04 0.04
Interest Income from JKTSA 0.52 0.52
Interest Income -CHT-0.26,ETSA-0.11 & JKTSA -0.75 (1.12)   (1.12)
Royalty income from VPL 4.52 4.52
Royalty income from VPL  (3.74)  (3.74)
Contribution to HASETRI  0.50 0.50
Contribution to HASETRI  (2.75)  (2.75)
Outstanding as at year end:
Receivable:     
- CHT-0.13 & JKTSA -5.87 6.00 6.00
- CHT-0.25 & JKTSA -9.53 (9.78)   (9.78)
- VPL – 109.59,JKLC 2.01 & FIL – 87.83 109.59 89.84 199.43
- VPL – 86.30,JKLC -2.13 & FIL -0.09  (86.30) (2.22) (88.52)

Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year amount, wherever applicable.

II. Remuneration to Vice Chairman & Managing Director ` 2.89 crs. (` 3.93 crs.), Managing Director ` 0.28 cr.
(` 1.71 crs.), Dy. Managing Director ` 1.28 crs. (` 1.37 crs.), Whole time Director ` 1.04 crs. (` 1.13 crs.)
and President & Director ` 1.91 crs. ( ` 2.01 crs.) is subject to Central Government approval for financial
year 2011-12. (Previous year figures in brackets)

48. Loans and Advances pursuant to Clause 32 of the Listing Agreement:

` in Crores (10 Million)

Outstanding Maximum Outstanding Maximum
as at Amount  as at Amount

31st March, Outstanding 31st March, Outstanding
2012 during 2011 during

2011-2012 2010-2011
Loans and Advances (in the nature of Loans) :
(Repayable on demand)

Subsidiaries:

JK Tornel S.A. de C.V. 5.87 9.53 9.53 10.24
Empresas Tornel, S.A. de C.V. - - - 2.12
Compañía Hulera Tornel, S.A. de C.V. 0.13 0.25 0.25 3.94

Note - Loans / Advances to employees as per Company’s policy are not considered.
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49. Work in Progress: ` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at

31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Compounds 23.24 22.88

Semi-finished Tyres 12.53 7.69

Others 16.63 10.71

52.40 41.28

` in Crores (10 Million)

2011-2012  2010-2011

50. a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency:

(i) Royalty - 6.77

(ii) Professional charges 1.44 1.45

(iii) Interest expense 2.25 -

(iv) Others 12.48 4.04

b) Remittances in foreign Currency on account of Dividend for the year 2010-11

(Previous year 2009-10)

(i)  Number of Non-resident shareholders 1 1

(ii) Number of Equity shares held by them 3487500 3487500

(iii) Amount of dividend remitted 1.05 1.22

c) Earnings in Foreign Currency on account of:

F.O.B. value of exports 590.29 418.04

Royalty 4.52 3.74

Interest Income 0.52 1.12

Others - 2.47

d) C.I.F. Value of Imports:

Raw Materials 1400.00 889.05

Capital Goods 281.87 80.75

Spares 5.06 3.98

51. Figures less than ` 50000 have been shown at actual in bracket.

52. During the year ended 31st March 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 1956, has

become applicable to the Company. Thus previous year figures has been reclassified / recasted suitably. The

adoption of revised Schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for

preparation of financial statements except for presentation and disclosures, wherever required.

As per our report of even date

H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA

SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA

Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors
ARVIND SINGH MEWAR

BAKUL JAIN

VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 ` in Crores (10 Million)
2011-2012 2010-2011

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net profit before tax and extraordinary items 12.80 91.67
Adjustment for :
Depreciation and Amortisation expense 124.78 114.54
Transfer from revaluation reserve  (23.37)  (23.44)
Finance Costs 170.43 98.08
(Profit)/Loss on sale of assets  (76.42)  0.04
Provision for diminution of Investments ( Previous Year: ` 41746)  0.23
Earliar Year Provision no longer required  -  (0.19)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 13.45  (2.84)
Interest / Dividend Received  (3.50)  (3.99)
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances and  Balances written off 1.03 0.50
Operating Profit before working capital changes 219.43 274.37
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables  (222.42)  (265.01)
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 27.06  (228.90)
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other Payables 326.57 222.11
Cash generated from Operations 350.64 2.57
Direct taxes (Net)  (3.92)  (24.00)
Net Cash from / (used in) Operating activities 346.72  (21.43)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Fixed Assets  (615.54)  (290.18)
Sale of Fixed Assets 9.93 2.38
Movement in Loan  9.98  3.61
Purchase of Investments  (21.05)  (3.32)
Redemption of Investment  13.50  -
Interest Received 3.49 3.69
Dividend Received  0.01  0.01
Net Cash used in Investing activities  (599.68)  (283.81)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from  borrowings 836.15 644.08
Repayment of  borrowings  (372.21)  (186.23)
Finance Costs Paid  (203.49)  (114.11)
Dividend paid ( including dividend tax)  (14.24)  (16.66)
Net cash from financing activities 246.21 327.08
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (6.75) 21.84
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 85.11 63.27
Foreign Currency Translation gain on Cash & Cash Equivalents 0.06 -
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the end of the year 78.42 85.11

Notes:
Cash and Cash Equivalents Include:
  - Cash, Cheques in hand and Remittances in transit 68.77 78.49
  - Balances with Banks 9.59 6.62
  - Unrealised Translation gain on Foreign Currency balances  0.06  -
Total 78.42 85.11

As per our report of even date

H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA

SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA

Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors
ARVIND SINGH MEWAR

BAKUL JAIN

VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES

LIMITED ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF JK TYRE &  INDUSTRIES LIMITED, ITS SUBSIDIARIES AND

ITS INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

We have examined the attached Consolidated Balance
Sheet of JK Tyre & Industries Limited, its subsidiaries and
its interests in associates as at 31st March, 2012 and the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and also the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended.

These financial statements are the responsibility of JK
Tyre & Industries Limited’s management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards in India.  These standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are prepared,
in all material respects, in accordance with an identified
financial reporting framework and are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management as well as, evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of any of the
subsidiaries. The financial statements of three subsidiaries
reflect total assets of  ` 2.50 crs. (Including ` 0.01 cr. for
J. K. International Limited) as at 31st March, 2012 and
those of all other subsidiaries reflect total assets of
` 1315.09 crs. as at 31st December, 2011 and total
revenues of ` 1930.89 crs. for the year ended on 31st
December, 2011. The financial statements of subsidiary,
namely, J. K. International Limited, which was furnished
to us by the management, was unaudited. Further the
financial statements of all other subsidiaries have been
audited by other auditors, whose reports have been
furnished to us and our opinion, in so far as it relates to
the amounts included in respect of the said subsidiaries,
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

The financial statements of associate, namely, Hari
Shankar Singhania Elastomer & Tyre Research Institute
have been audited by us, whose financial statements
reflect total assets of ̀  19.16 crs.  as at 31st March, 2012
and total revenue of ` 9.65 crs. for the year then ended.

We did not audit the financial statements of associate,
namely, Valiant Pacific LLC., whose audited financial

statements reflect total assets of ` 211.13 crs. as at
31st December, 2011 and total revenue of ` 712.66 crs.
for the  year then ended. The said financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us, and our opinion, in so far as it relates
to the amounts included in respect of the interest in said
associate, is based solely on the report of other auditors.

We report that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared by the Company in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 21
“Consolidated Financial Statements” and (AS) 23
“Accounting for Investments in Associates in
Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the
basis of the separate audited financial statements of JK
Tyre & Industries Limited, its subsidiaries and its interests
in associates included in the consolidated financial
statements.

On the basis of the information and explanations given
to us and on the consideration of the separate audit
reports on individual audited financial statements of the
Company and its Subsidiaries and its interests in
Associates included in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, we are of the opinion that the said
consolidated financial statements read together with
notes thereon, give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India:

a) In the case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Company, its
Subsidiaries and its interests in Associates as at
31st March, 2012;

b) In the case of the Consolidated Statement of Profit
& Loss, of the consolidated results of operations of
the  Company, its Subsidiaries and its interests in
Associates for the year then ended; and

c) In the case of Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
of the consolidated cash flows of the Company, its
Subsidiaries and its interests in Associates for the year
then ended.

For LODHA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

N.K. LODHA

Partner

Firm Registration No. 301051E

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 Membership No. 85155

AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31st MARCH 2012 ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note No. 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital 2 41.06 41.06
Reserves and Surplus 3 714.26 817.28

755.32 858.34
Non-current Liabilities
Long-term borrowings 4 1120.42 549.30
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 5 147.56 144.86
Other Long-term liabilities 6 344.02 302.23
Long-term provisions 7 49.75 46.15

1661.75 1042.54
Current Liabilities
Short-term borrowings 8 901.75 979.19
Trade payables 1284.52 966.42
Other current liabilities 9 412.91 331.16
Short-term provisions 10 124.25 122.08

2723.43 2398.85
TOTAL 5140.50 4299.73

ASSETS

Non-current Assets
Fixed Assets
- Tangible assets 11 1866.46 1850.02
- Intangible assets 11 3.10 5.46
- Capital work-in-progress 765.15 200.02
Non-current investments 12 100.69 87.13
Long-term loans and advances 13 74.44 118.63
Other non-current assets 14 - 0.17

2809.84 2261.43
Current Assets
Inventories 15 781.85 817.57
Trade receivables 16 1008.54 822.80
Cash and bank balances 17 104.93 114.47
Short-term loans and advances 18 347.16 277.08
Other current assets 19 88.18 6.38

2330.66 2038.30
TOTAL 5140.50 4299.73

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA
Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors

ARVIND SINGH MEWAR
BAKUL JAIN
VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT & LOSS STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2012 ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note No. 2011-2012 2010-2011

Revenue from operations 20 7451.98 6415.42

Less: Excise Duty 504.88 436.65

Net Revenue from operations 6947.10 5978.77

Other income 21 3.77 7.10

Total Revenue ( I ) 6950.87 5985.87

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 22 4993.25 4382.60

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 23 69.79 48.17

(Increase) / Decrease in inventories of finished goods, 24 83.18  (164.81)

work-in-progress and Stock-in-trade

Employee benefits expense 25 502.37 473.63

Other expenses 26 969.65 914.49

Total ( II ) 6618.24 5654.08

Profit before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (PBIDT) [ I - II ] 332.63 331.79

Finance costs 27 187.50 116.53

Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 121.05 109.25

Profit before exceptional items and tax 24.08 106.01

Exceptional Items 36 (47.08) 5.95

Profit / (Loss) before tax (23.00) 111.96

Tax Expense:

- Current Tax 15.15 43.65

- Mat Credit Entitlement (2.63) -

- Deferred Tax 2.70 5.76

Profit / (Loss) after tax (38.22) 62.55

Share in Profits of Associates 6.23 3.36

Profit / (Loss) for the year (31.99) 65.91

Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity share (`): 37

- Cash 22.35 44.06

- After Tax (7.79) 16.05

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA
Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors

ARVIND SINGH MEWAR
BAKUL JAIN
VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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Note – 1 Principles of Consolidation:

a) The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise of the financial statements of JK Tyre & Industries Limited (Parent Company)
and the following as on 31.03.2012:

i) Subsidiaries:

Name Proportion of Financial

ownership interest Statements as on

J. K. International Ltd., U.K 100% 31.03.2012
J. K. Asia Pacific Ltd., Hong Kong 100% 31.03.2012
J. K. Asia Pacific (S) Pte Ltd., Singapore 100% 31.03.2012
Lankros Holdings Ltd., Cyprus 100% 31.12.2011
Sarvi Holdings Switzerland AG., Switzerland 100% 31.12.2011
JK Tornel S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
Comercializadora América Universal, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
Compañía Hulera Tacuba, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
Compañía Hulera Tornel, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
Compañía Inmobiliaria Norida, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
General de Inmuebles Industriales, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
Gintor Administración, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011
Hules y Procesos Tornel, S.A. de C.V., Mexico 99.96% 31.12.2011

 Impact of minority interest is insignificant and immaterial, hence not considered.

ii) Associates:

Name Status Ownership Financial

Interest Statement as on

Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre
Research Institute, India Audited 24% 31.03.2012

Valiant Pacific LLC., UAE Audited 49% 31.12.2011

There are no significant transactions or other material events that have occurred between the balance sheet date of
above companies and the parent company.

b) The Financial Statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis by adding
together the book value of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating Intra-group balances and
Intra-group transactions.

c) In case of associates, where Company holds directly or indirectly through subsidiaries 20% or more equity or / and exercises
significant influence, Investments are accounted for by using equity method in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS)
23 – “Accounting for Investments in Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”.

d) Post acquisition, the Company accounts for its share in the change in net assets of the associates (after eliminating unrealised
profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and its Associates to the extent of its share) through its profit
and loss account in respect of the change attributable to the associates’ profit and loss account and through its reserves for
the balance.

e) The difference between the cost of investment and the share of net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the subsidiaries
and associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve as the case may be.

f) The Accounting Policies of the parent company, its subsidiaries and associates are largely similar. However, few accounting
policies are different as certain subsidiaries / associates located in  different countries have to comply with the local regulatory
requirements.

g) Foreign Subsidiaries – Revenue items have been consolidated at the average rate of foreign exchange prevailing during the
year. The assets and liabilities, both monetary and non-monetary, of the non-integral foreign operation are translated at closing
rate. Exchange differences arising on monetary and non-monetary items that in substance forms part of the Company’s net
investment in non-integral foreign operation are accumulated in the Foreign Currency Translation Reserve.

h) Significant Accounting Policies and Notes accompanying Accounts of the financial statements of the company and its subsidiaries
are set out in their respective Financial Statements.

i) The accounts of J. K. International Ltd. are exempt from Audit.
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            ` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at
Note - 2 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Equity Shares -12,50,00,000 of ` 10 each 125.00 125.00

14% Cumulative Redeemable Preference 7.00 7.00

Shares - 7,00,000 of ` 100 each

Preference Shares - 48,00,000 of ` 100 each 48.00 48.00

180.00 180.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:

Equity Shares (with equal rights)- 4,10,59,346 of  ` 10 each fully 41.06 41.06
paid up (Previous Year : 4,10,59,346 Equity Shares of ` 10 each)

41.06 41.06

  ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note - 3 31.03.2011 Additions Transfers 31.03.2012

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Capital Reserve 187.18 14.06 (a) 19.97 (b) 181.27 (c)

Capital Redemption Reserve 7.00 - - 7.00

Securities Premium Reserve 218.09 - 0.39 (d) 217.70

Debenture Redemption Reserve 0.71 - 0.71 -

Revaluation Reserve 83.78 - 42.80 (e) 40.98

General Reserve 315.34 10.00 - 325.34

Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement  (f) 0.93 - 53.21 (52.28)

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 4.25 - 10.00 (5.75)

817.28 24.06 127.08 714.26

Previous Year 808.90 85.17 76.79 817.28

(a) Gain on reinstatement of net Capital Reserve on consolidation as at Balance Sheet date.
(b) ` 19.97 crs. towards depreciation arising out of revaluation for foreign subsidiaries transferred to Profit & Loss

Statement.
(c) Represents Capital Reserve on Consolidation.
(d) Provision for premium on redemption of Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures.
(e) ` 23.37 crs. towards depreciation arising out of revaluation transferred to Profit & Loss Statement and

` 19.43 crs. adjusted for Fixed Assets sold / transferred.
(f) Detail of Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement: As at As at

31.3.2012 31.3.2011

Surplus in Profit and Loss statement from Previous year 0.93 25.87

Profit / (Loss) for the year (31.99) 65.91

Debenture Redemption Reserve no longer required 0.71 3.85

Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - (0.38)

Transfer to General Reserve (10.00) (80.00)

Proposed Dividend (@ ` 2.50 per equity share) (10.26) (12.32)

Corporate Dividend Tax (1.67) (2.00)

Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement carried to Balance sheet (52.28) 0.93
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` in Crores (10 Million)
Note - 4 Non Current Current*

As at As at As at As at
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS 31.03.2012 31.03.2011 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

SECURED LOANS

Zero Coupon Non-Convertible Debentures - - - 2.82
Term Loans:
- Financial Institutions 94.29 - - -
- Banks 793.70 327.58 54.78 38.49
- Others 57.29 65.52 8.22 8.22
Deferred Sales Tax 5.52 17.73 12.21 16.38

950.80 410.83 75.21 65.91
UNSECURED LOANS

Deferred Sales Tax 97.21 104.63 24.30 -
Fixed Deposits 22.41 33.84 20.25 16.35
Loan from Bank 50.00 - - -

169.62 138.47 44.55 16.35
1120.42 549.30 119.76 82.26

Less:  Amount Disclosed under the head
“Other Current Liabilities” (Note No. 9) - - (119.76) (82.26)

1120.42 549.30 - -
 * Payable during next 12 months.

Note - 5
As at As at

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

Pursuant to the accounting standard on ‘Accounting
for Taxes on Income’ (AS-22), deferred tax
liability / (asset) are as under:
1. Deferred Tax Liability related to Fixed Assets 190.19 156.25
2. Deferred Tax Assets

(i) Expenses / Provision Allowable 11.97 11.39
(ii) Unabsorbed depreciation 30.66 42.63 - 11.39

3. Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) - Net 147.56 144.86
Certain foreign Subsidiaries have not recognised deferred tax asset (net) based upon prudence.

Note - 6 As at As at
31.03.2012 31.03.2011

OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Trade Deposits & Others 344.02 302.23
344.02 302.23

Note - 7

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits 49.75 46.15
49.75 46.15

Note - 8

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

SECURED LOANS

Repayable on demand from Banks 779.01 567.23
779.01 567.23

UNSECURED LOANS

Fixed Deposits 5.43 12.55
Short-Term Loans from Banks 117.31 399.41

122.74 411.96
901.75 979.19
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 ` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at

Note - 9 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current maturities of long-term borrowings 119.76 82.26

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 11.14 4.30

Unclaimed dividends # 0.58 0.50

Unclaimed / Uncollected Fixed Deposits and interest accrued thereon # 1.85 1.64

Others:

- Government and Other Statutory Dues 126.44 114.82

- Other Payables 153.14 127.64

412.91 331.16

#  Investor Education & Protection Fund will be credited as and when due.

Note - 10

SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefits 6.64 11.38

Others:

- Provision for Taxation 105.68 96.38

- Proposed Dividend 10.26 12.32

- Provision for Corporate Dividend Tax 1.67 2.00

124.25 122.08

Note - 11

FIXED ASSETS ` in Crores (10 Million)

Gross Value Depreciation / Amortisation Net Value

Particulars As at Additions Sales/ Translation As at Upto For the Sales/ Translation Upto As at As at

31.03.2011 Adjustments^ Adjustments Adjustment@ 31.03.2012 31.3.2011 Year Adjustments Adjustment@ 31.03.2012 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

(I) Tangible Assets

Land - Freehold 147.63 - - (8.05) 155.68 - - - - - 155.68 147.63

 - Leasehold 10.67 - 0.01 - 10.66 0.99 0.11 - - 1.10 9.56 9.68

Buildings* 442.49 22.07 - (8.52) 473.08 94.64 15.48 - (1.93) 112.05 361.03 347.85

Plant and Equipments 2693.91 153.19 125.75 (20.67) 2742.02 1390.09 141.52 102.76 (10.36) 1439.21 1302.81 1303.82

Furniture & Fixtures 22.20 1.50 3.02 (0.36) 21.04 12.11 1.17 2.16 (0.19) 11.31 9.73 10.09

Office Equipments 18.19 0.90 0.30 (0.40) 19.19 10.39 0.99 0.19 (0.37) 11.56 7.63 7.80

Vehicles 30.58 5.62 8.00 (0.12) 28.32 7.43 2.76 2.01 (0.12) 8.30 20.02 23.15

3365.67 183.28 137.08 (38.12) 3449.99 1515.65 162.03 107.12 (12.97) 1583.53 1866.46 1850.02

Previous Year 3120.72 236.70 4.22 (12.47) 3365.67 1364.58 149.48 2.14 (3.73) 1515.65 1850.02

(ii) Intangible Assets

Software # 11.78  - - - 11.78 6.32 2.36 - - 8.68 3.10 5.46

11.78 - - - 11.78 6.32 2.36 - - 8.68 3.10 5.46

Previous Year 11.78 - - - 11.78 3.97 2.35 - - 6.32 5.46

* Buildings include ` 2.05 crs. constructed on Leased Land, 274 shares held in co-operative housing societies and property worth ` 0.46 cr. yet to be registered

in Company’s name.

# Being amortised over a period of 5 years.

@ Represents translation adjustments arising on consolidation of foreign subsidiaries.

^ Includes capitalisation of finance cost - Buildings ` 0.96 cr. and Plant & Machinery ` 5.19 crs.

Factory & Service buildings and Plant and Machinery of Parent Company’s Plant at Jaykaygram, were revalued as at 1st January, 1985 & 1st April, 1991. On 1st

April, 1997 the revaluation of such assets was updated alongwith similar assets of Banmore plant. The revaluation of said assets of Jaykaygram and Banmore was

further updated alongwith Factory Land and Township building as at 1st April, 2002 based on replacement cost by a Valuer. Further, Fixed Assets of certain foreign

subsidiaries at Mexico were revalued as at 12th June, 2008 on the basis of report of a certified Valuer. The Gross Block includes cumulative surplus of ` 961.13 crs.

as at 31.03.2012 (Previous year: ` 1038.80 crs.) arising on revaluation.



58

` in Crores (10 Million)
As at As at

Note -12 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

INVESTMENTS

NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Long-term)

(Other than trade)
Investment in Shares:

Equity 4.36 1.55
Preference 19.13 14.61

Investment in associates * 27.84 21.61
Bonds 49.11 49.11
Mutual Funds 0.25 0.25
Government Securities (` 25000; As at 31.03.2011: ` 25000)

100.69 87.13
* Share of profits has been recognised in carrying amount of investment in associates.

Note -13

LONG-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES (Unsecured - Considered Good)

Advances - Project related 46.19 95.74
Security Deposits with Govt. Authorities and Others 28.25 22.89

74.44 118.63

Note -14

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Balances on Deposit Accounts*  - 0.17
- 0.17

* Pledged with bank as margin money against bank guarantees. Maturity more than 12 months.

Note -15

INVENTORIES

Raw Materials* 386.82 352.55
Work-in-Progress 66.82 58.67
Finished Goods ** 283.04 370.34
Stock-in-trade 8.10 6.90
Stores and Spares 37.07 29.11

781.85 817.57
* Includes raw materials in transit ` 52.42 crs. (Previous Year - ` 54.23 crs.)

** Includes finished goods in transit ` 2.62 crs. (Previous Year - ` 0.94 cr.)

Note -16

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Unsecured)

(a) Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they
are due for payment
Considered Good 52.48 55.16
Doubtful 23.01 18.41
Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts (23.01) (18.41)

(b) Others (Considered Good) 956.06 767.64

1008.54 822.80
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 ` in Crores (10 Million)

As at As at
Note -17 31.03.2012 31.03.2011

CASH & BANK BALANCES

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks :

On Current Accounts 17.49 13.31

On Deposit Accounts 17.94 21.98

On Dividend Accounts 0.58 0.50

Remittances in transit and Cheques on hand 68.71 78.43

Cash on hand 0.21 0.25

(b) Other Bank Balances:

On Deposit Accounts - 0.17

104.93 114.64

Less : Amount disclosed under Non-current Assets - Note No. 14 - (0.17)

104.93 114.47

Note -18

SHORT-TERM LOANS & ADVANCES (Considered Good)

Secured Loan - 0.62

Unsecured:

Loans - 6.30

Loans and advances to related parties 1.22 0.50

Balance with Excise and Sales tax Authorities 183.22 109.83

Export Benefit Receivable 6.58 11.81

Prepaid Expenses 7.52 7.54

MAT Credit Entitlements 11.37 8.74

Income Tax Advance Payments 107.41 98.53

Other Advances 29.84* 33.21

347.16 277.08

* Other Advances include Share Application Money of ` 3 crs.  paid to Dwarkesh Energy Ltd.

(a Power Project SPV) for subscribing to the Optionally Convertible Cumulative Redeemable

Preference Shares (Face value ` 100 each) of  ` 10 crs.

Note -19

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Receivables against Sale of Fixed Assets  87.74 -

Interest Accrued on Investments 0.44 0.44

Unbilled Revenue - 5.94

88.18 6.38
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 ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note -20 2011-2012 2010-2011

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of Products
Tyres 6866.85 5892.03
Tubes & Others 550.75 485.37

Sale of Services
Royalty 4.52 3.73

Other operating revenues:
Miscellaneous Income 29.86 29.42
Provision of earlier years, no longer required - 4.87

7451.98 6415.42
Note -21

OTHER INCOME

Income from Long-term Investments
- Dividends 0.01 0.01
- Interest 0.58 0.55

Other Interest Income 3.18 6.54

3.77 7.10
Note -22

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Rubber 3225.81 2801.19
Reinforcement Material 712.94 646.20
Carbon Black 511.52 421.26
Chemicals & Others 542.98 513.95

4993.25 4382.60
Note -23

PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE

Tyres 0.27 1.07
Tubes 22.27 10.08
Flaps 47.25 37.02

69.79 48.17
Note -24

(INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS,

WORK-IN-PROGRESS AND STOCK-IN-TRADE

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 370.34 212.96
Work-in-Progress 58.67 41.45
Stock-in-Trade 6.90 3.95

(A) 435.91 258.36
Closing Stock

Finished Goods 280.39* 370.34
Work-in-Progress 61.87* 58.67
Stock-in-Trade 8.10 6.90

(B) 350.36 435.91
Differential Excise Duty on Increase / Decrease of Finished Goods (C) 2.37 (12.74)

(Increase) / Decrease in Stocks (A-B-C) 83.18 (164.81)

* Exclude Trial period stocks - Finished Goods  ` 2.65 crs. and Work-in-Progress ` 4.95 crs.
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 ` in Crores (10 Million)

Note -25 2011-2012 2010-2011

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salaries and Wages 348.80 325.04

Contribution to Provident and other Funds 58.95 59.04

Employees’ Welfare and other Benefits 94.62 89.55

502.37 473.63

Note -26

OTHER EXPENSES

Conversion Charges 47.49 67.42

Consumption of Stores and spares 65.76 59.83

Power and Fuel 275.02 238.44

Rent 16.58 8.75

Repairs to Buildings 3.99 8.10

Repairs to Machinery 26.48 21.38

Insurance 7.61 4.38

Rates & Taxes 14.25 12.43

Discount 172.04 160.58

Freight and Transportation 156.55 141.02

Advertisement and sales promotion 49.92 42.65

Royalty - 7.11

Commission 29.77 26.54

Loss / (Profit) on sale of Assets (Net) - 0.13

Provision for Diminution in value of long-term investments (2010-11: ` 41746) 0.23

Bad Debts written off 0.43 -

Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances 4.04 7.03

Bank Charges, Printing & Stationery, Postage, Telephone, Travelling, Directors' Fee
and other Miscellaneous Expenses 99.49 108.70

969.65 914.49

Note -27

FINANCE COSTS

Interest Expenses 185.79 114.79

Other Borrowing Costs 1.71 1.74

187.50 116.53

Note -28

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE

Depreciation and Amortisation 164.39 151.83

Less : Transfer from Revaluation Reserve (43.34) (42.58)

121.05 109.25
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29. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account ` 145.19 crs. (Previous year:
` 415.59 crs.).

30. Contingent liabilities in respect of claims not accepted and not provided for ` 48.87 crs. (Previous year:
` 45.81 crs.), pertaining to Excise duty matters in appeal ` 4.47 crs., Service Tax matters ` 0.04 cr., Sales Tax
matters in appeal ` 5.59 crs., Income Tax matters in appeal ` 10.54 crs. & Other matters ` 28.23 crs. (Previous
year: ` 4.45 crs., ` 1.49 crs., ` 3.40 crs., ` 6.76 crs. & ` 29.71 crs. respectively).

31. Bills discounted with Banks outstanding ` 12.53 crs. (Previous year: ` 13.65 crs.).

32. Excise Duty liability on account of valuation of Finished Goods is disputed and is yet to be determined. Without
prejudice to the Company’s stand in this behalf, as per Government’s desire an adhoc amount of ` 5.45 crs.
was paid under protest in earlier years and debited to ‘Advances Recoverable’ and an equivalent amount was
provided in Profit and Loss Account. On Writ Petition filed by the Company in the Hon’ble Delhi High Court, the
said Court directed the Excise Authorities to determine the valuation of finished goods in accordance with law
and observations made in the order.

33. JKTSA has given Guarantee to a bank against counter indemnity from a body corporate in respect of non-fund
based facilities outstanding at year end - ` 101.29 crs. (Previous year: ` 40.28 crs.).

34. In respect of certain disallowances and additions made by the Income Tax Authorities, appeals are pending
before the Appellate Authorities and adjustment, if any, will be made after the same are finally determined.

35. The Company has worked out reversal of Modvat Credit availed on exports under Value Based Advance
Licence in earlier years and reversed the same in accounts. Pursuant to special scheme announced by the
Government, the Company has also paid interest on such reversals. Further, the Excise department has issued
certain basis for reversal of Modvat, which is disputed and has been contested by the Company in a Writ
Petition before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court and directions have been issued to treat the reversal already
made by the Company as provisional.

36. Exceptional items include net impact of unfavourable Foreign Exchange Rate fluctuation ` 111.92 crs. (Previous
Year: ` 6.58 crs. - credit), net gain on sale of certain assets ` 76.42 crs. (Previous Year: Nil), and expenditure on
Voluntary Retirement Scheme (VRS) for the employees of ` 11.58 crs. (Previous Year: ` 0.63 cr.).

37. Earnings Per Share: ` in Crores (10 Million)
2011-2012 2010-2011

a. Profit / (Loss) for the year (31.99) 65.91
b. Weighted average number of equity shares 41059346 41059346
c. Basic and Diluted Earnings per equity shares (`) (Face Value ` 10 each)

- Cash 22.35 44.06
- After Tax (7.79) 16.05

38. Debts over six months / Advances include ` 24.21 crs. (Previous year: ` 24.27 crs.), for which legal and other
necessary action has been taken. In the opinion of the Management, these debts are recoverable and the
same have been classified as good.

39. Auditors of a subsidiary company J. K. Asia Pacific Limited have invited attention towards recoverability in
respect of amount due ` 0.75 cr. equivalent HK$ 1124838 (Previous year: ` 0.66 cr. equivalent HK$ 1124838)
from an associate company.

40. Related Parties:

a) Associates:

Hari Shankar Singhania Elastomer and Tyre Research Institute (HASETRI)
Valiant Pacific LLC. (VPL)

b) Key Management Personnel (KMP):

Dr. Raghupati Singhania Vice Chairman & Managing Director
Shri Bharat Hari Singhania Managing Director
Shri Vikrampati Singhania Dy. Managing Director
Shri Swaroop Chand Sethi Whole Time Director
Shri Arun Kumar Bajoria President & Director

c) Enterprise over which KMP is able to exercise significant influence:

JK Lakshmi Cement Ltd. (JKLC)
Fenner India Ltd. (FIL)
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The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of business:
` in Crores (10 Million)

Nature of Transactions Associates Enterprise over TOTAL

which KMP is

able to exercise

Significant

Influence

Purchase of cement from JKLC & Spares from FIL  0.12 0.12

Purchase of cement from JKLC & Spares from FIL  (0.12) (0.12)

Purchase of Capital Items from FIL  0.02 0.02

Purchase or Raw Material from VPL 184.46  184.46

Purchase or Raw Material from VPL (132.22)  (132.22)

Sale of Capital items to FIL  87.78 87.78

Sale of Tyres to VPL & JKLC 369.67 0.86 370.53

Sale of Tyres to HASETRI, VPL - 258.87 & JKLC (258.88) (1.29) (260.17)

Sale of Stores to HASETRI 0.05  0.05

Sale of Raw Material & Stores to HASETRI (0.03)  (0.03)

Sharing of Expenses received - HASETRI, JKLC & FIL - 0.71 1.30 1.23 2.53

Sharing of Expenses received - HASETRI, JKLC & FIL - 0.56 (1.24) (1.04) (2.28)

Sharing of Expenses paid - JKLC & FIL - 0.46  0.89 0.89

Sharing of Expenses paid - JKLC & FIL - 0.46  (0.71) (0.71)

Services Availed - HASETRI - 10.34, VPL, FIL & JKLC - 3.07 10.45 3.08 13.53

Services Availed - HASETRI - 5.98, VPL & JKLC (6.06) (2.51) (8.57)

Loans / Advances given – HASETRI, FIL - 0.28 & JKLC 0.67 0.34 1.01

Loans / Advances given - HASETRI - 7.21, VPL,  JKLC - 2.15 & FIL (7.28) (2.43) (9.71)

Loans / Advances recovered - HASETRI & FIL 0.50 0.58 1.08

Loans / Advances recovered - HASETRI - 2.70 , VPL & JKLC (3.03) (0.60) (3.63)

Loans / Advances received - HASETRI, VPL, JKLC - 0.45 & FIL 0.03 0.49 0.52

Loans / Advances received - HASETRI, VPL, JKLC - 2.92 & FIL (0.21) (2.95) (3.16)

Loans / Advances repaid - VPL & FIL 0.24 0.01 0.25

Loans / Advances repaid - HASETRI, VPL, JKLC - 4.91 & FIL (0.15) (5.14) (5.29)

Guarantee Given for VPL (113.65)  (113.65)

Lease Rent paid to FIL  0.04 0.04

Royalty income from VPL 4.52  4.52

Royalty income from VPL (3.74)  (3.74)

Contribution to HASETRI 0.50  0.50

Contribution to HASETRI (2.75)  (2.75)

Outstanding as at year end:    

Receivable:    

VPL - 48.67, JKLC 2.01 & FIL - 87.83 48.67 89.84 138.51

VPL - 47.68, JKLC - 2.13 & FIL - 0.09 (47.68) (2.22) (49.90)

Guarantee Given on behalf of VPL 136.08  136.08

Guarantee Given on behalf of VPL (113.65)  (113.65)

Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel (KMP) for the year ` 7.40 crs. (Previous year: ` 10.15 crs.).

Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year amount, wherever applicable.
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41. Segment Information for the year ended 31st March, 2012
Information about Primary Geographical Segments:

` in Crores (10 Million)

Particulars India Mexico Others Total

2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11 2011-12 2010-11

1. REVENUE         
 External Revenue from Operation 5643.71 4830.13 1303.39 1148.65 - - 6947.10 5978.78
 Inter segment Sales - - - (0.01) - - - (0.01)
 Total Sales 5643.71 4830.13 1303.39 1148.64 - - 6947.10 5978.77
 Other Income 2.98 2.87 0.79 4.23 - - 3.77 7.10
 Total Revenue 5646.69 4833.00 1304.18 1152.87 - - 6950.87 5985.87

2. RESULT
 Segment result (PBIT) before

exceptional items 181.04 203.22 30.82 19.81 (0.28) (0.49) 211.58 222.54
 Finance Cost 170.43 98.08 17.07 18.45 - - 187.50 116.53
 Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional Items 10.61 105.14 13.75 1.36 (0.28) (0.49) 24.08 106.01
 Exceptional Items 1.65 (13.47) (48.72) 19.42 (0.01) - (47.08) 5.95
 Profit / (Loss) before Tax 12.26 91.67 (34.97) 20.78 (0.29) (0.49) (23.00) 111.96
 Income Taxes 1.80 30.35 13.42 19.06 - - 15.22 49.41
 Profit / (Loss) after Tax 10.46 61.32 (48.39) 1.72 (0.29) (0.49) (38.22) 62.55
 Share of Profit in Associates - - - - 6.23 3.36 6.23 3.36
 Profit / (Loss) for the year 10.46 61.32 (48.39) 1.72 5.94 2.87 (31.99) 65.91

3. OTHER INFORMATION
 Segment assets 4294.41 3481.48 816.84 795.14 29.25 23.11 5140.50 4299.73
 Segment liabilities 3657.85 2804.58 727.21 636.71 0.12 0.10 4385.18 3441.39
 Capital Expenditure 689.11 336.48 9.22 7.79 - - 698.33 344.27
 Depreciation 101.41 91.10 19.64 18.15 - - 121.05 109.25
 Non Cash Expenses Other than

Depreciation - - - - - - - -

Notes:
(a) The Company has identified geographic segments as its primary segment and business segments as its secondary

segment.
(b) Geographic segments  of the company are India, Mexico and Others as its risk and returns are affected predominantly

by the fact that it operates in different countries or other geographical areas.
(c) Business segments comprise of only one segment namely Tyre, Tubes & Flaps. Therefore, reporting as required under

Accounting Standard (AS-17) - “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India is not
applicable.

42. Work in Progress: ` in Crores (10 Million)

As at 31.03.2012 As at 31.03.2011

Compounds 32.54 32.65

Semi-finished Tyres 17.38 15.06

Others 16.90 10.96

66.82 58.67

43. Figures less than ` 50000 have been shown at actuals in bracket.

44. Figures pertaining to Subsidiary Companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them  in line with the
Parent Company’s Financial Statement.

45. During the year ended 31st March 2012, the revised Schedule VI notified under the Companies Act 1956, has become
applicable to the Company. Thus previous year figures have been reclassified / recasted suitably. The adoption of revised
Schedule VI does not impact recognition and measurement principles followed for preparation of financial statements
except for presentation and disclosures, wherever required.

As per our report of even date
H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA
Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors

ARVIND SINGH MEWAR
BAKUL JAIN
VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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JK TYRE & INDUSTRIES LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT ` in Crores (10 Million)

For the year ended 31st March, 2012 2011-2012 2010-2011

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net profit / (loss) before tax (23.00) 111.96

Adjustment for :

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 164.39 151.83

Transferred from Revaluation Reserve (43.34) (42.58)

Finance Costs 187.50 116.53

(Profit) / Loss on sale of assets (76.42) 0.13

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 53.64 (10.50)

Foreign Currency Translation gain / (loss) on Consolidation (5.22) (1.32)

Diminution in value of Investments (Previous Year: ` 41746) 0.23

Interest / Dividend Received (3.77) (7.10)

Provision for Doubtful Debts / Advances & Balances Written off 4.47 7.03

Earlier Year Provisions no longer required - (4.87)

Operating Profit before working capital changes 258.48 321.11

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (247.87) (249.23)

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 42.95 (259.48)

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade and other Payables 321.84 247.39

Cash generated from Operations 375.40 59.79

Direct taxes (net) (14.59) (51.82)

Net Cash from operating activities 360.81 7.97

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Fixed Assets (623.89) (297.39)

Sale of Fixed Assets 9.94 1.83

Movement in Loan 6.20 -

Purchase of Investments (21.05) (3.32)

Redemption of Investment 13.50 -

Interest Received 3.76 6.80

Dividend Received 0.01 0.01

Net Cash used in investing activities (611.53) (292.07)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from borrowings 845.56 728.97

Repayment of  borrowings (372.29) (272.48)

Finance Cost Paid (219.50) (132.88)

Dividend paid (including dividend tax) (14.24) (16.66)

Net cash from financing activities 239.53 306.95

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (11.19) 22.85

Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 114.47 90.99

Foreign Currency Translation gain / (loss) on Cash and Cash equivalent 1.65 0.63

Cash and Cash equivalents as at the end of the year 104.93 114.47

Notes:

Cash and Cash Equivalents Include:

- Cash, Cheques on hand and Remittances in transit 68.92 78.68

- Balances with Banks 34.36 35.16

- Unrealised Translation gain / (loss) on Foreign Currency balances 1.65 0.63

Total 104.93 114.47

As per our report of even date
H.S. SINGHANIA Chairman

For LODHA & CO. Dr. RAGHUPATI SINGHANIA Vice Chairman & Managing Director

Chartered Accountants BHARAT HARI SINGHANIA Managing Director

VIKRAMPATI SINGHANIA
SWAROOP CHAND SETHI

N.K. LODHA P.K. RUSTAGI ARUN KUMAR BAJORIA
Partner Secretary OM PRAKASH KHAITAN Directors

ARVIND SINGH MEWAR
BAKUL JAIN
VIMAL BHANDARI

New Delhi, the 15th May, 2012 KALPATARU TRIPATHY
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

` in Crores (10 Million)

Sl. Name of the Subsidiary Share Reserves Total Total Details of Turnover Profit / Income Profit / Proposed
No.  Company Capital & Surplus / Assets Liabilities Investments including (Loss) Tax (Loss) Dividend

(Accumulated (other than other before expense after
Losses) Investment in income taxation taxation

Subsidiary
Companies)

1. J.K. International Ltd 0.95 (0.94) 0.01 0.01 - - - - - -

2. J. K. Asia Pacific Ltd. 0.71 0.71 1.44 1.44                 -           - (0.02)           - (0.02)           -

3. J. K. Asia Pacific (S) 0.34 0.68 1.05 1.05 0.21           -       (0.04)           -       (0.04)           -

Pte. Ltd. (Subs. of J. K.

Asia Pacific Ltd.)

4. Lankros Holdings Ltd. 26.31 0.18 26.84 26.84                 -           - (0.13)           - (0.13)           -

5. Sarvi Holdings

Switzerland AG. 27.24 (1.42) 25.98 25.98                 -        0.01 (0.10)           - (0.10)           -

(Subs. of Lankros

Holdings Ltd.)

6. JK Tornel S.A. de C.V.

(JKTSA) (Subs. of Sarvi 25.75 (185.45) 296.03 296.03                 -     618.69 (26.02)           - (26.02)           -

Holdings Switzerland AG.)

7. Comercializadora América

Universal, S.A. de C.V. 0.02 3.30 3.45 3.45                 -        0.06 0.06           - 0.06           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

8. Compañía Hulera

Tacuba, S.A. de C.V. 0.41 63.65 128.93 128.93                 - 6.13 1.20           - 1.20           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

9. Compañía Hulera

Tornel, S.A. de C.V. 81.85 (9.20) 578.19 578.19                 - 1267.04 (19.72) 12.36 (32.08)           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

10. Compañía Inmobiliaria

Norida, S.A. de C.V. 1.48 147.55 158.66 158.66                 - 6.82 3.40           - 3.40           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

11. General de Inmuebles

Industriales, S.A. de C.V. 0.05 32.72 35.89 35.89                 - 3.65 2.65       0.65 2.00           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

12. Gintor Administración,

S.A. de C.V. 0.01 3.51 50.42 50.42                 - 26.67 2.11       0.40 1.71           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

13. Hules y Procesos

Tornel, S.A. de C.V.  * 9.11 10.70 10.70                 -        1.82        0.72       0.01        0.71           -

(Subs. of  JKTSA)

(* ` 2056)

Converted at exchange rates as applicable.

The Company has complied with the conditions as stipulated by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India, New Delhi vide its General Circular
No.2/2011 dated 8th February, 2011, whereby direction u/s 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956 was issued granting general exemption from
attaching the Accounts of Subsidiaries of the Company. However, annual accounts of the subsidiary companies and the related detailed information
will be made available to the investors of the company and its subsidiaries seeking such information at any point of time. The annual accounts of
the subsidiary companies are available for inspection by any investor at the Head Office of the Company and the concerned subsidiary.












